

and for such consideration and for such period of time as the commissioner may determine. The county auditor, with the approval of the county board, is authorized to grant permits, licenses, and leases for all such purposes across tax forfeited lands not held by the state free from any trust in favor of any and all taxing districts, upon such conditions and for such considerations and for such period of time as the county board may determine. Any proceeds from the granting of such permits, licenses, or leases shall be apportioned and distributed as other proceeds from the sale or rental of tax forfeited lands.

Approved May 25, 1963.

---

CHAPTER 873—H. F. No. 1791

[Coded in Part]

*An act relating to the organization and administration of state government; appropriating moneys therefor and limiting the use thereof; providing for the transfer of certain moneys in the state treasury; adjusting the salaries of certain state officers and employees; authorizing land acquisition by gift, purchase, or condemnation in certain cases; limiting the amount of fees to be collected for deposit in the state treasury; and providing penalties for misusing funds appropriated hereby.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Expenses of state government appropriations.** Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, the sums hereinafter set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS", or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general revenue fund in the state treasury, or any other fund herein designated, for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1963", "1964", and "1965" wherever used in this act, shall mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed thereunder shall be available for the year ending June 30, 1963, June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965, respectively.

	APPROPRIATIONS		
	Available for the Year Ending June 30		
	1963	1964	1965
	\$	\$	\$
Sec. 2. THE LEGISLATURE			
Subdivision 1. For the Senate			
Salaries, supplies and expense ..	200,000	345,000	545,000

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

## Subd. 2. For the House of Representatives

Salaries, supplies and expense . .	200,000	535,000	835,000
------------------------------------	---------	---------	---------

The appropriation in subdivision 1 for the year 1964 includes \$125,000 for standing committees of the state senate and the appropriation in subdivision 2 for the year 1964 includes \$125,000 for standing committees of the house of representatives and such sums are appropriated for such purposes.

Any balances remaining on June 30, 1963, and June 30, 1964, in subdivisions 1 and 2, shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year. Should the appropriations in subdivisions 1 and 2 for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

## Subd. 3. For the Senate

Printing and binding . . . . .			90,000
--------------------------------	--	--	--------

## Subd. 4. For the House of Representatives

Printing and binding . . . . .			110,000
--------------------------------	--	--	---------

The state senate and the house of representatives may, as needed, utilize the services of the state printer.

## Subd. 5. Legislative Advisory Committee . . . . .

	1,000	1,000	
--	-------	-------	--

## Subd. 6. Legislative Research Committee . . . . .

	70,700	74,300	
--	--------	--------	--

Interim committees enacted by the 1963 legislature are hereby requested to have secretarial and such other services as are necessary provided by the legislative research committee. The reimbursement for such services is hereby reappropriated to the legislative research committee.

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel, but be carried forward to the following year.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Subd. 7. State Claims Committee . . . .	15,000	
Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year.		
Subd. 8. Legislative Buildings Commission . . . . .	42,000	
Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year.		
Subd. 9. General Contingent . . . . .	175,000	150,000
The above appropriations to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30		
Should the appropriations in subdivision 9 for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.		
Subd. 10. Water Pollution Control Commission Contingency Fund . .	100,000	
This item shall not be expended until the commission has consulted with the legislative advisory committee in the manner provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year.		
Subd. 11. Income Tax Contingent . . . .	100,000	
The amount appropriated by subdivision 11 is transferred and re-appropriated from the income tax school fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of taxation, division of income tax for salaries, supplies and expense to be administered by the legislative advisory committee, as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30. The balance shall be carried forward the second year.		
Subd. 12. Game and Fish Contingent	100,000	

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

The amounts appropriated by subdivision 12 are transferred and re-appropriated from the game and fish fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the division of game and fish, for salaries, supplies and expense, to be administered by the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30, the balance to be carried forward the second year.

Subd. 13. Motor Vehicle Contingent .. 25,000

The amount appropriated by subdivision 13 is transferred and re-appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund to supplement the needs for salaries, supplies and expense of the motor vehicle division, and is to be spent with the approval of the governor and the legislative advisory committee, as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30, the balance to be carried forward the second year.

Sec. 3. GOVERNOR

Subdivision 1. Salaries ..... 132,997 136,464

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..... 31,392 18,330

Subd. 3. Personal expenses connected with office ..... 11,000 11,000

Subd. 4. Expenses of delegate to Indian council meeting ..... 300 300

Sec. 4. CIVIL DEFENSE

Subdivision 1. Salaries ..... 93,118 94,257

Approved Complement—12

Plus such additional personnel as may be financed by federal funds for the period that federal funds are available.

Subd. 2. State equipment and aid .. 2,000 3,500

Subd. 3. Supplies and expense ..... 19,162 19,162

Sec. 5. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

Subdivision 1. Salary and expenses .. 6,500 5,800

Sec. 6. STATE AUDITOR

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

1600	SESSION LAWS	[Chap.
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	320,054	324,394
Approved Complement—55		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	61,677	74,280
Provided that the auditor's biennial report shall be printed in summary form notwithstanding any law to the contrary.		
Subd. 3. Contributory share — public employees retirement association		
a. Legislative members ..... 53,455.99		
b. Former state employees .... 22,830.65		
Of the amounts appropriated by item b, \$2,237.63 is to be paid from employment security administration, \$1,034.21 is to be paid from the income tax school fund, and \$1,128.37 is to be paid from the trunk highway fund.		
Subd. 4. Civil Air Patrol		
a. Supplies, expense and equipment .....		
	10,000	10,000
To be disbursed by the state auditor on certification of commander, the Minnesota wing of the civil air patrol.		
Sec. 7. STATE TREASURER		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	144,395	146,376
Approved Complement—22		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	69,970	63,470
The amounts appropriated by subdivisions 1 and 2 include salaries and expenses for liquor stamps and labels.		
Sec. 8. PUBLIC EXAMINER		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	246,139	250,707
Approved Complement—32		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	13,500	13,000
Sec. 9. DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	1,395,251	1,396,362
Approved Complement—244		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 1, \$888,901 for the year ending June 30, 1964, and \$888,604 for the year ending June 30, 1965, shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the income tax school fund.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	568,480	574,700
-------------------------------------	---------	---------

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 2, \$507,823 for the year ending June 30, 1964, and \$502,230 for the year ending June 30, 1965, shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the income tax school fund. The above appropriation includes expenses for collection of rural cooperative electric taxes. Taxes retained by department to be deposited in general revenue fund.

Subd. 3. Income Tax Division

a. Salaries .....	1,299,926	1,303,626
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—207

b. Supplies and expense .....	392,458	389,111
-------------------------------	---------	---------

c. Collections Unit .....	60,399	62,002
---------------------------	--------	--------

The amounts provided by item c are to be used for the collection of delinquent tax accounts. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but shall be available in the following year. The amounts provided by subdivision 3 are appropriated from the income tax school fund.

Subd. 4. Petroleum Division

a. Salaries .....	502,445	501,994
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—88

b. Supplies and expense .....	88,645	88,366
-------------------------------	--------	--------

c. Bond premiums for gasoline tax collectors .....	14,500	14,500
--	--------	--------

#### Sec. 10. STATE BOARD OF TAX APPEALS

Subdivision. 1. Salaries .....	25,592	25,723
--------------------------------	--------	--------

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

The amounts appropriated in subdivision 1 provide for compensation for the members of the board of tax appeals at the rate of \$35 per day.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	2,622	2,440
-------------------------------------	-------	-------

SEC. 11. ATTORNEY GENERAL

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	302,335	306,923
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—34

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	28,750	31,750
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Special Contingent Appropriation .....	15,000	15,000
---	--------	--------

The balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1964, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 4. Abandoned Bank Deposits Escheat Actions .....	7,500	
--	-------	--

Subd. 5. Criminal Apprehension Bureau		
---------------------------------------	--	--

a. Salaries .....	229,149	232,822
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—31

b. Supplies and expense .....	70,000	54,795
-------------------------------	--------	--------

c. Police school supplies and expense .....	15,264	13,197
---	--------	--------

Subd. 6. The unexpended balances remaining on June 30, 1963, of moneys appropriated by Laws 1961, Chapter 628, and Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 88, Section 11, Subdivision 4, are re-appropriated and shall be available for the biennium beginning July 1, 1963.		
--	--	--

Sec. 12. DISTRICT COURT

To be disbursed by the state auditor

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....	13,997	986,500	986,500
---	--------	---------	---------

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Sec. 13. RETIRED SUPREME AND DISTRICT COURT JUDGES AND COMMISSIONER

Subdivision 1. Salaries ..... 172,513 167,763

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor. The amounts appropriated by subdivision 1 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965, shall be used for the payment of salaries, retirement benefits and survivorship benefits to retired supreme and district court judges, commissioner, and widows of supreme and district court judges.

Sec. 14. SUPREME COURT

Subdivision 1. Salaries ..... 316,827 319,011

Of the amount appropriated for salaries, \$11,500 is for the annual salary of the clerk of the supreme court; \$8,500 is for the annual salary of the deputy clerk, and not to exceed \$16,500 is for the annual salary of an administrative assistant to the supreme court.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..... 21,845 21,260

Subd. 3. Publishing Minnesota Reports 12,500 12,500

Subd. 4. Referee Fees for Cases of Original Jurisdiction ..... 300

The balance on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

Subd. 5. Court Commissioner Salaries 6,500 6,500

Sec. 15. REVISOR OF STATUTES

Subdivision. 1. Salaries ..... 79,503 80,888

Of the amount appropriated for salaries, not to exceed \$16,500 each year is for the salary of the revisor, and not to exceed \$13,000 each year is for the salary of the assistant revisor. The salary shall be set by the supreme court.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..... 2,500 2,500

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.



Subd. 3. Bill Drafting—salaries and expenses for the 1965 legislature	50,000	
Any balance remaining in subdivision 3 on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the second year.		
Sec. 16. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	608,171	614,345
Approved Complement—84		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	49,975	44,555
Subd. 3. Printing Biennial Budget ..		13,000
Subd. 4. Printing Session Laws — Bound Volume and Newspaper Supplement .....		52,000
Subd. 5. Minnesota State Employees Merit Award Board .....	2,000	2,000
Subd. 6. Division of Public Property		
a. Salaries .....	1,179,097	1,183,423
Approved Complement—243		
Any of the moneys appropriated by subdivision 6, for the salaries of state employees whose duties it is to perform cleaning and security services in and for state buildings may be used by the commissioner of administration to contract and pay for such services if he determines that the contract method is more economical than having such services performed by state employees.		
b. Supplies and expense .....	532,325	517,325
The commissioner shall lease and collect rent for the portions of 117 West University Avenue and the centennial building occupied by state departments, the rental to be based upon the amount of space occupied, all such rentals to be credited as income in the general revenue fund in the state treasury.		
c. Special repairs and replacements .....	25,000	25,000
Subd. 7. Central Services (Mailing)		
a. Salaries .....	40,513	41,591

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—10

b. Supplies and expense .....	7,500	7,000
c. Payroll preparation .....	74,000	74,000

To reimburse the division of central services for the cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by annual appropriations made by the legislature and who use the facilities of the division. However, in the case of payrolls which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of payroll preparation which is chargeable to federal funds shall not be reimbursed from item c but shall be reimbursed from such federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such funds for that purpose.

The cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so-called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the division of central services from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.

Of the amounts appropriated by item c, \$5,500 each year is appropriated from the game and fish fund, \$9,000 each year is appropriated from the income tax school fund, and \$150 each year is appropriated from the special revenue fund—state airport account.

Sec. 17. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

CIL

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....	1,000	1,000
---	-------	-------

Sec. 18. BOARD OF INVESTMENT

MENT

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....	62,354	62,852
Approved Complement—7		
Sec. 19. SECRETARY OF STATE		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	71,148	72,180
Approved Complement—10		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	10,272	9,297
The amounts provided in subdivisions 1 and 2 include administration of charitable contributions act.		
Subd. 3. Printing legislative manual ..		40,000
Subd. 4. Publishing constitutional amendments .....	42,400	
Subd. 5. Election expense and nomination fees .....	22,000	27,152
Subd. 6. Mobile home registration		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	15,000	15,000
Approved Complement—2		
Subd. 7. Motor Vehicle Division		
a. Salaries .....	902,718	902,190
Approved Complement—165		
b. Supplies and expense .....	369,440	383,420
None of the moneys appropriated by item b shall be expended for rental of electronic equipment not in use on the effective date of this act unless the commissioner of administration shall first determine in writing that electronic equipment in use by the department of highways is either not available or not adaptable for the needs of the motor vehicle division.		
c. License plates .....	600,000	1,200,000
Materials purchased to be used in the manufacture of motor vehicle number plates for the state shall be tested as to conformance with specifications established by the secretary of state and the division of purchases in a privately operated laboratory to be designated		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

by the division of purchases. The cost of such laboratory service shall be included in the cost of the materials purchased. The expenses of the state reformatory for men in manufacturing number plates under Laws 1957, Chapter 412, shall include the cost of the delivery of such number plates to the secretary of state at the places which he may designate. Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or of any other law, the appropriations made in subdivision 7, item c, for the years 1964 and 1965 shall be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure from and after the passage of this act. All materials and all equipment used in the manufacture of such number plates shall be approved by the commissioner of administration. Notwithstanding any provision of Laws 1957, Chapter 412, to the contrary, whenever the state reformatory for men shall certify to the commissioner of administration that expenses have been incurred for material, labor and any additional equipment which may have been purchased for the manufacture of number plates, the commissioner of administration may, even though a number plate order has not been completed, approve the certification and direct the auditor and treasurer to pay such expenses or to reimburse the state reformatory for men therefor from the moneys appropriated hereby. If the division of purchases incurs expenses for material or for any additional equipment which may have been purchased for the manufacture of number plates, the commissioner of administration may in a like manner direct the auditor and treasurer to pay such expenses.

The moneys appropriated by subdivision 7, items a, b, and c, are hereby appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund. None of such appropriations are chargeable against the general revenue fund.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

d. Dealers Division			
1. Salaries .....		15,220	15,713
Approved Complement—3			
2. Supplies and expense .....		752	852
e. Chauffeurs License Division			
1. Salaries .....		65,419	59,692
Approved Complement—1964— 9 1965—12			
2. Supplies and expense .....		27,877	27,432
Sec. 20. DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE			
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....		332,255	338,315
Approved Complement—57			
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....		33,299	26,996
Sec. 21. ARCHIVES COMMIS- SION			
Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....		63,866	65,288
Approved Complement—9			
Sec. 22. MUNICIPAL COM- MISSION			
Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....	2,500	23,919	23,957
Approved Complement—2			

Notwithstanding any provision in Minnesota Statutes, Section 414.01, or of any law amendatory of said section heretofore enacted, members of the commission therein created shall hereafter be paid \$35 per day only when in attendance at commission meetings or hearings, the chairmen of boards of county commissioners shall be paid \$25 per day for each hearing attended, and county auditors shall be deemed to be performing duties for the county without additional compensation when serving as an ex-officio member of the commission.

The revisor of statutes in compiling the next edition of Minnesota Statutes shall substitute the several

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

amounts of compensation fixed in the next preceding paragraph for the respective compensations specified in Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 414.01, for the officials therein named.

AL		
Sec. 23. ADJUTANT GENERAL		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	166,148	167,390
Approved Complement—25		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	10,495	11,000
Subd. 3. National Guard		
a. Salaries .....	84,763	85,484
Approved Complement—11		
b. Supplies and expense .....	60,350	62,200
Subd. 4. Camp Ripley		
a. Salaries .....	56,698	58,544
Approved Complement—18		
b. Supplies and expense .....	25,300	28,425
Subd. 5. Armory Maintenance and Repairs		
a. Salaries .....	406,640	420,224
b. Supplies and expense .....	385,404	340,654

Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or any other law, the appropriations made in section 23 shall be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure upon passage of this act, for the purpose of financing federal reimbursement contracts.

ING		
Sec. 24. DIVISION OF BANKING		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	413,227	415,750
Approved Complement—55		
Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 1, \$3,259 for the year ending June 30, 1964, and \$1,847 for the year ending June 30, 1965, is hereby appropriated from the rural credit expense fund.		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	49,065	48,760

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 2, \$3,963 for the year ending June 30, 1964, and \$1,590 for the year ending June 30, 1965, is hereby appropriated from the rural credit expense fund for the accounts listed as items 2, 3, and 4, in Laws 1949, Chapter 740, Section 45.

The amounts specified as appropriated from the rural credit expense fund in subdivisions 1 and 2 are the maximum amounts that may be expended for any purpose relating to rural credits for which an appropriation is made herein during the fiscal years ending June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965.

Sec. 25. DIVISION OF INSURANCE

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	263,940	269,287
Approved Complement — 37		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	22,467	22,100
Subd. 3. Fire Marshal		
a. Salaries .....	119,481	121,989
Approved Complement — 17		
b. Supplies and expense .....	25,120	25,207

Sec. 26. DIVISION OF SECURITIES

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	69,012	70,605
Approved Complement — 9		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	8,245	7,520

Sec. 27. RAILROAD AND WAREHOUSE COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Administration, Including Motor Bus and Truck		
a. Salaries .....	445,160	444,429
Approved Complement — 62		
b. Supplies and expense .....	47,150	46,542
Subd. 2. Weights and Measures		
a. Salaries .....	127,211	128,184
Approved Complement — 19		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

	b. Supplies and expense .....	31,374	31,458
Subd. 3.	Grain Inspection		
	a. Salaries .....	2,202,260	2,202,260
	b. <i>Supplies and expense</i> .....	148,970	146,970

Items a and b include necessary expenses of a board of grain standards, which board is hereby created. It shall consist of the chief grain inspector appointed pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 233.17, and the chief deputy inspectors of Minneapolis and Duluth, appointed pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 233.18. This board shall have jurisdiction over all grain standards now or hereafter established in Minnesota. It shall meet annually on or before June 15, and establish grades of all grain subject to state inspection, which shall be known as the "Minnesota grades", and all grain received at any public warehouse shall be graded accordingly. Such grades shall not be changed before the next annual meeting without the concurrence of at least two members of the board. At the time of establishing "Minnesota grades" it shall be the duty of such board to establish such rules and regulations as such board shall deem necessary for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 233.135 to 233.137; and shall publish such rules and regulations in such manner as the railroad and warehouse commission shall approve. In establishing the grades, in addition to the physical qualities of the grain, there shall be taken into consideration the milling and bread-producing quality of all grain products used as human food.

The board of grain appeals, as constituted immediately prior to the enactment of this act, is hereby abolished.

c. Overtime .....	200,000	200,000
For the purpose of computing		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



payment of overtime, employees of the grain inspection division shall be compensated for each week's work on the following basis: For time worked up to 40 hours, regular salary; for time worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, one and one-half times his regular salary, provided, however, that no employee shall receive overtime for any one day except for time worked in excess of 10 hours in that day, or until he has worked 40 hours in that week, except that such employee shall receive one and one-half times his regular salary for time worked on Sundays and regular holidays, irrespective of the number of hours worked during any one day, or during said week. The commission is directed to adjust its schedule of fees before the end of each fiscal year to provide that the initial charge made for services to be rendered during the next fiscal year shall be sufficient to provide an income during the latter fiscal year equal to the amount of the appropriation for that year for salaries, overtime expenses, which shall include, without limitation an amount for state retirement and social security contributions. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be more than 103 percent of such appropriation for that year, the commission in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such appropriation less the amount of such excess over 103 percent of the appropriation first referred to herein. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be less than the appropriation for that year, the commission, in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year, shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of the appropriation for the latter year plus the amount of the difference between the appropriation for the year first referred to herein and the total income

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

from such fees during that year, and plus 3 percent of the total appropriation for both the latter and the first year referred to herein. Such schedule of fees shall provide that any elevator, mill or other commission business requesting the service of a weigher, shall pay a minimum charge of \$1.75 per hour for each weigher requested or assigned. Any fees earned by such weigher shall be credited against the charge made therefor. Such minimum charge shall be assessed only after taking into consideration all fees earned and all hours charged. Excess fees earned over hours charged shall be carried forward from month to month during any one fiscal year. When deemed necessary by the chief of grain inspection, a charge for actual overtime costs may be made.

d. Grain Inspection Contingent Fund .....	750,000
---	---------

The above appropriation to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee, as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.30. The balance is to be carried forward the second year.

Sec. 28. LABOR AND INDUSTRY

TRY

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	652,016	656,506
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement — 98

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	62,846	62,722
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

The amounts appropriated for salaries and for supplies and expense are to include salaries, supplies and expense for the administration of the voluntary apprenticeship law and for control of occupational diseases.

Subd. 3. Voluntary Apprenticeship Advisory Group — Per Diem .....	600	600
---	-----	-----

Subd. 4. Division of Boiler Inspection		
--	--	--

a. Salaries .....	132,830	134,853
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement — 21

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

1614	SESSION LAWS	[Chap.
b. Supplies and expense .....	19,381	18,941
Sec. 29. LIQUOR CONTROL DEPARTMENT		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	221,265	225,309
Approved Complement — 35		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	40,785	40,695
Sec. 30. LABOR CONCILIATOR		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	85,533	86,778
Approved Complement — 10		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	15,450	14,755
Sec. 31. DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	184,392	188,524
Approved Complement — 26		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	351,425	334,950
Subd. 3. Port Authority of Duluth ...	50,000	50,000
<p>The amounts appropriated by subdivision 3 are appropriated to the port authority of Duluth, organized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 458.09 to 458.19, inclusive, and shall be used for the promotion of seaway trade. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but shall be available in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1965.</p>		
Sec. 32. COMPENSATION INSURANCE BOARD		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	24,363	24,364
Approved Complement — 3		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	1,645	1,797
Sec. 33. DEPARTMENT OF AERONAUTICS		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	147,164	148,111
Approved Complement — 17		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	70,894	69,044
<p>The amounts appropriated by subdivisions 1 and 2 are transferred and reappropriated from the account known as the state airports account.</p>		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Sec. 34. DEPARTMENT OF  
AGRICULTURE

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	972,002	968,809
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement — 136

The above appropriation is for salaries for the accounts listed as items 1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 13, 13½, and 14 of Section 28, Chapter 660, Laws of 1943.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	188,674	180,179
-------------------------------------	---------	---------

The above appropriation is for supplies and expense for the accounts listed as items 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 13½, and 14 of Section 28, Chapter 660, Laws of 1943, and for butter grading. Any butter purchased may, if marketable under the laws of this state, be sold and the proceeds of such sale be credited to this appropriation.

Subd. 3. Poultry Breeding and Inspection		
--	--	--

a. Salaries, supplies and expense	49,539	49,118
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 4. Weed Control on Tax Exempt and Tax Forfeited Land .....	8,000	8,000
--	-------	-------

Subd. 5. White Pine Blister Rust Control .....	7,500	7,500
--	-------	-------

Subd. 6. Forest Pest Control .....	10,000	
------------------------------------	--------	--

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but shall be available in the following fiscal year.

Subd. 7. Market and Produce Inspection		
--	--	--

a. Salaries, supplies and expense	35,000	35,000
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

The fees for services performed by activities financed by subdivision 7 shall be reviewed, and if necessary, adjusted each six months to the end that such fees shall insofar as it is practicable, cover the cost of the services rendered. All moneys collected by authority of Minnesota Statutes, Section 21.53, and all balances now on hand received from such source are here-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

by appropriated for the purpose carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 21.47 to 21.58, inclusive. All moneys collected by authority of Minnesota Statutes, Section 27.07 for services rendered pursuant to written contracts are hereby appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 27, and the moneys so collected and appropriated shall be in addition to and not in substitution for the sums appropriated in this section. All funds, sums of money or other resources paid or furnished to the department of agriculture, dairy and food by the federal government shall be credited to and become a part of the various appropriations provided for in this section, and all such funds, sums of money or other resources so credited to the various appropriations shall be in addition to and not in substitution for any sum appropriated or otherwise made available by this section. Provided that the fees for services performed by activities financed by subdivision 3 shall be fixed by the commissioner of agriculture with the approval of the commissioner of administration at the beginning of each fiscal year and reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of each six month period in order that the fees prescribed shall insofar as practicable cover the cost of all services rendered.

**Sec. 35. DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION**

There is hereby appropriated to the commissioner of conservation, the following amounts for the following purposes, said amounts to be under the control of and to be expended by direction of the commissioner of conservation.

**Subdivision 1. Conservation Administration**

a. Salaries .....	555,873	558,610
Approved Complement — 81		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Provided that of the amount appropriated in subdivision 1a, \$333,524 for the fiscal year 1964 and \$335,166 for the fiscal year 1965 shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the game and fish fund on the books of the state auditor and the records of the game and fish division.

b. Supplies and expense . . . . .	130,182	121,710
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Provided that of the amount appropriated in subdivision 1b, \$78,109 for the fiscal year 1964 and \$73,026 for the fiscal year 1965 shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as game and fish on the books of the state auditor and the records of the game and fish division.

Included in this item is sufficient money for the publication of four issues of the Conservation Volunteer during each fiscal year. An additional issue during each fiscal year may be published with funds provided by the standing appropriation contained in the boat and water safety act.

c. Notwithstanding the date limitations specified in Minnesota Statutes, Section 361.27, Subdivision 1, all of the moneys credited to the boat and water safety account established thereunder are appropriated for the purposes and in the manner specified therein for use during the biennium ending June 30, 1965.

Subd. 2. Division of Waters

a. Salaries . . . . .	152,922	154,548
-----------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement — 20

b. Supplies and expense . . . . .	15,618	15,445
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

This item includes moneys for the repair or modification of facilities constructed for lake or stream improvement projects.

c. Carp control structures . . . . .	18,000	
--------------------------------------	--------	--

For the construction of carp con-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

trol structures at the following locations in Douglas county: Lake Mary, Maple Lake, and between Lakes Mina and Brophy.

The amount appropriated by item c is appropriated from the game and fish fund.

d. Thief River snag removal . . . . . 10,000 10,000

For the removal of snags from the Thief River. The commissioner of conservation is empowered to enter into contracts with the United States of America, or any agency thereof, and with any agency or governmental subdivision of the state of Minnesota for the removal of such snags, or for cooperation with any thereof in such removal. All moneys received under any such contract are reappropriated to the commissioner of conservation for the purposes of this item. The amounts appropriated by item d are transferred and reappropriated from the consolidated conservation areas fund and shall not cancel but shall remain available for expenditure until the project is completed.

e. Channel improvement . . . . . 40,000

For dredging, marking, removing snags, and improving the channel of the Minnesota River. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

f. Hydrologic studies . . . . . 30,000 30,000

Approved Complement — 3

The above amounts include provisions for the items of stream gauging, lake level control, and underground waters survey. Provided any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the second year. The balance remaining from the amount appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 88, Section 35, Subdivision 2, Item f, shall not cancel on June 30, 1963,

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by *strikeout*.**

but be available until June 30, 1965.

Subd. 3. Division of Forestry

a. Salaries .....	1,814,437	1,830,035
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—269

The approved complement includes positions formerly budgeted as cooperative forestry and state land management.

Provided that of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 3a \$75,000 for the year ending June 30, 1965, is transferred and reappropriated from the account known as the consolidated conservation areas account, Minnesota Statutes, Section 84A.55.

b. Supplies and expense .....	320,294	333,294
-------------------------------	---------	---------

This item includes moneys formerly budgeted separately for cooperative forestry and state land management.

All receipts from rents of buildings under custodianship of the division of forestry are hereby reappropriated to subdivision 3b hereof.

c. Fire fighting .....	82,000	82,000
------------------------	--------	--------

The balance remaining in the amount provided in item c for the year ending June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but shall be available for the purpose of fire prevention for the year ending June 30, 1965. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1965, may be used for the purchase of fire fighting equipment.

Subd. 4. Division of Lands and Minerals

a. Salaries .....	432,660	436,059
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—63

b. Supplies and expense .....	52,785	47,655
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 5. Division of Game and Fish

a. The Pittman-Robertson revolving account in the state treas-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



ury is abolished on July 1, 1963, and any balances therein are transferred to the game and fish receipts account in the state treasury. *Federal aid reimbursements* re- on and after July 1, 1963, and due the Pittman-Robertson account shall be deposited to the credit of the game and fish receipts account in the state treasury. The *Dingell-Johnson revolving account* in the state treasury is abolished on July 1, 1963, and any balances therein are transferred to the game and fish receipts account in the state treasury. Federal aid reimburse- ments received on and after July 1, 1963, and due the Dingell-John- son account shall be deposited to the credit of the game and fish receipts account in the state treas- ury.

b. Administration and Warden Service

1. Salaries .....	1,061,346	1,058,066
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement — 161

The approved complement in- cludes certain positions formerly budgeted in the Pittman-Robert- son account.

No overtime shall be paid to either game wardens or game war- den pilots.

2. <i>Supplies and expense</i> .....	466,096	392,249
--------------------------------------	---------	---------

This item includes moneys for- merly budgeted in the Dingell- Johnson and the Pittman-Robert- son accounts.

c. Fisheries-General .....	1,558,645	1,517,181
----------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—135

This item includes moneys for- merly budgeted in the rough fish removal-day labor, rough fish re- moval-contracts, and certain posi- tions and supplies and expense allowances in the Dingell-Johnson account.

The rough fish removal contract

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

revolving fund is abolished July 1, 1963, and any balances therein are transferred to the game and fish receipts account in the state treasury. On or after such date, receipts from rough fish removal shall be deposited to the credit of the game and fish receipts account.

d. Cooperative Rearing Pond Assistance .....	7,500	7,500
--	-------	-------

e. Game—General .....	906,285	876,697
-----------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—88

This item includes moneys and certain positions formerly budgeted in the Pittman-Robertson account.

f. Research and Planning ....	614,597	608,653
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—61

This item includes moneys and certain positions formerly budgeted in the Pittman-Robertson and Dingell-Johnson accounts.

g. Firearms Safety .....	32,000	32,000
--------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—2

Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, all amounts appropriated in this subdivision are to be charged against the game and fish fund and not against the general revenue fund. All receipts credited to the game and fish fund not herein authorized to be used or otherwise transferred shall be retained in the game and fish fund as a surplus.

All of the income, receipts, and fees collected by the division of game and fish, not appropriated or transferred to other divisions or departments of the state government by the provisions of this act, except attributable costs provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.20, shall be deposited in the state treasury to and for the benefit of the division of game and fish.

h. Acquisition of Wetlands for Wildlife Habitat .....	342,000	342,000
---	---------	---------

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

The above amount shall be appropriated from the wildlife acquisition account. This appropriation includes an amount sufficient to cover all necessary costs of land acquisition, care, improvements; and payments to local subdivisions of government in lieu of taxes.

i. Public Access

For acquisition, improvement, development and maintenance of sites for public access to public waters and for lake improvement. All moneys credited to the game and fish fund under Minnesota Statutes, Section 296.421, Subdivision 4, are hereby appropriated to the commissioner of conservation for the foregoing purposes. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but shall be available for the following year.

Subd. 6. Division of Parks

a. Operations

1. Salaries .....	440,513	442,178
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—54

2. Supplies and expense .....	136,676	124,973
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Sec. 36. SURVEYOR GENERAL OF LOGS AND LUMBER

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	65,706	65,944
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—8

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	16,708	17,735
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Subdivisions 1 and 2 include moneys and positions formerly budgeted in the scaling fees account.

Sec. 37. STATE MAPPING ADVISORY BOARD .....

25,000	25,000
--------	--------

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

Sec. 38. MINNESOTA WATER RESOURCES BOARD

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense .....	20,594	20,509
---	--------	--------

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

All hearings of the water resources board shall be solely in the performance of expressed statutory duties.

Sec. 39. STATE SOIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Salaries ..... 29,895 29,941

Approved Complement—4

Subdivision 1 includes moneys for a watershed conservationist.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..... 12,332 12,229

Subd. 3. Soil Conservation Districts .. 199,300 199,800

This item includes moneys formerly budgeted in the state soil conservation commission, supplies and expense account.

The amounts appropriated under subdivision 3 shall be expended under the direction of the state soil conservation committee through the soil conservation districts in aid of all conservation practices, as requested by co-operators, including technical assistance for all practices requiring the same on any land within the respective districts. The state committee shall inform each district governing body of the foregoing provisions annually or oftener as may be necessary to secure compliance therewith.

Subd. 4. Watershed Planning Team .. 36,000 37,000

The amounts appropriated shall be available for watershed protection activities of the state, and shall be used for surveys, investigations, planning (the assembling of preliminary engineering, economic, and related watershed data into a reasonable watershed plan), and advanced engineering study (the preparation of detailed designs, specifications, and engineering cost estimates of works of improvements) of watershed projects.

No moneys shall be approved for construction or installation of any works of improvement, or for soil

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

surveys, or for any costs that local groups of people in a watershed are responsible for in any watershed project.

Funds shall be controlled by the state soil conservation committee; and can be used to reimburse the United States soil conservation service upon agreement between the state soil conservation committee and the United States soil conservation service state conservationist in Minnesota. Cooperation with the United States soil conservation service in Minnesota in employment of personnel and in determining work schedules to accelerate the study, planning and detailed design function of watershed protection activities in Minnesota is authorized.

A report of the state's participation and progress in a watershed planning team shall be filed with the governor and the legislature by January 1965.

Sec. 4. BOARD OF HEALTH

Subdivision 1. Administration

a. Salaries .....	832,763	830,324
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—218

The amounts appropriated for salaries by the above item include salaries for items 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 12 of Laws 1945, Chapter 609, Section 37, and for hospital licenses, and blood banks.

b. Supplies and expenses ....	127,304	123,367
-------------------------------	---------	---------

The amounts appropriated for supplies and expense by the above item include supplies and expense for items 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 12 of Laws 1945, Chapter 609, Section 37, and for hospital licenses and blood banks.

Any amounts received from the city of Duluth and from St. Louis county are hereby reappropriated for supplies and expense. Grants in aid now or hereafter received from the federal government for

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

any health assistance or health program or for administration under the jurisdiction of the department of health shall in the first instance be credited to a federal grant fund and shall be transferred therefrom to the credit of the proper account of the department of health upon certification of the executive secretary that the amounts so requested to be transferred have been earned or are required for the purposes and program intended. Moneys received by such federal grant fund need not be budgeted as such, provided the transfers from such fund are budgeted for allotment purposes in the appropriate appropriations. All receipts received from the National Office of Vital Statistics for microfilmed transcripts of vital statistics records shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund.

Subd. 2.	Water Pollution Control . . . .	122,239	129,085
	Approved Complement—28		
Subd. 3.	Consultant on Alcoholism		
a.	Salaries, supplies and expense	15,000	15,000
	Approved Complement—2		
Subd. 4.	Hotel Inspection		
a.	Salaries . . . . .	104,870	121,597
	Approved Complement—21		
	b. Supplies and expense . . . . .	24,000	30,608
Subd. 5.	Hospital and Medical Facilities Construction and Supervision		
a.	Salaries . . . . .	92,146	92,855
	Approved Complement—11		
	b. Supplies and expense . . . . .	5,105	4,925
Subd. 6.	Public Health Nursing . . . . .	100,000	100,000
Subd. 7.	Radiation Health . . . . .	22,000	22,000
	Approved Complement—4		

Sec. 41. LIVESTOCK SANITARY BOARD

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	333,114	339,325
<i>Approved Complement—49</i>		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	301,685	300,885
The appropriation herein made includes an amount sufficient for the purpose of testing poultry, including turkeys, for pullorum disease.		
Subd. 3. Indemnities .....	20,000	20,000
Provided that no payment for less than \$1 for indemnities be made under this appropriation.		
Subd. 4. Contingent Fund for Brucellosis Eradication .....	300,000	
The above appropriation to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by law. The balance in said fund at the end of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1964, shall not cancel into the general revenue fund but shall be available for the same purpose for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1965.		
Sec. 42. GOVERNOR'S HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION .....	24,555	24,569
<i>Approved Complement—3</i>		
Sec. 43. STATE COMMISSION AGAINST DISCRIMINATION .....	51,332	52,529
<i>Approved Complement—7</i>		
Sec. 44. WAR VETERANS AFFAIRS		
Subdivision 1. Salaries .....	245,610	247,576
<i>Approved Complement—41</i>		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	16,499	16,530
Subd. 3. Soldiers Welfare Emergency Relief .....	85,000	85,000
Provided that of the amounts appropriated above there shall be available \$10,000 each year for maintenance of the Marine Disabled Veterans' Rest Camp and \$10,000 each year for mainten-		

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

ance of the Big Island Veterans' Rest Camp.

Subd. 4. War Orphans' Education Aid	1,500	1,500
Subd. 5. Disabled War Veterans' Relief	575,000	550,000

The amounts appropriated by subdivision 5 shall be available for veterans' relief to be administered by the commissioner of veterans affairs for relief purposes as described in Laws 1941, Chapter 525, Section 10. No other moneys appropriated herein shall be used for relief or any other work projects. The expenditures of the moneys appropriated by this section shall be subject to all the limitations and conditions imposed by Laws 1941, Chapter 525, upon the expenditures of the moneys herein appropriated, and all such limitations and conditions are hereby extended and reenacted except that the amounts allocated for veterans' relief shall be administered by the commissioner of veterans affairs. The Minnesota public relief advisory committee is hereby continued for the purposes of this subdivision and all provisions of Laws 1941, Chapter 525, relating thereto are hereby extended and reenacted.

Provided that the balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1964, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 6. War Veterans' and War Orphans' Education Aid . . . . .	75,000	
---	--------	--

To be expended pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 197.75. The balance on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel but be available for the following year.

Subd. 7. Headstones, Markers and Sockets for Soldiers and Sailors Graves . . . . .	5,000	5,000
--	-------	-------

Sec. 45. STATE LAW LIBRARY

Subdivision 1. Salaries . . . . .	54,566	55,706
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—8

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



Subd. 2. Supplies and expense .....	2,645	1,565
Subd. 3. Books and Binding .....	54,000	

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1964, shall not cancel, but be carried forward to the following year.

Sec. 46. STATE ATHLETIC COMMISSION .....	4,000	4,000
--	-------	-------

Sec. 47. EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION .....	56,308.60	
---------------------------------------	-----------	--

To be transferred by the state auditor to the department of labor and industry compensation revolving fund, in payment of obligations incurred by the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Adjutant General	\$ 6,325.80
Administration	7,619.10
Agriculture	728.05
Law Library	462.88
Veterans Affairs	32.04
Labor Conciliator	3,754.31
Surveyor General	726.16
Livestock Sanitary Board	14,275.15
Conservation	22,385.11

Provided that of the amount appropriated by section 47, \$538.78 shall be paid from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 48. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .....	203,179.38	
--	------------	--

In reimbursement of unemployment compensation benefits paid for former employees of the following:

Agriculture, Dairy and Food	\$ 3,729.82
Conservation	179,305.18
Governor	1,804.72
Labor and Industry	498.67

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Military Affairs	14,127.47
State Auditor	2,437.17
Surveyor General	1,276.35

Provided that of the amount appropriated by section 48, \$33,-286.63 is to be paid from the game and fish fund.

**Sec. 49. Employees, salary increases.** The salaries of all employees, except attorneys appointed by the attorney general, in the unclassified service of the state for which an appropriation is made in this act, whose salary is not herein or otherwise fixed by law, shall be adjusted to the class of persons in the classified service performing comparable work and having comparable responsibility, as determined by the director of civil service but in no event to an amount in excess of the maximum of such class.

**Sec. 50. Fees.** The fees fixed for the various accounts for which an appropriation is made in this act pursuant to existing authority of law shall be neither increased nor decreased except with the approval of the commissioner of administration. All such fees shall be reviewed at least once each six months, and such adjustments shall be made to the end that the total fees received shall approximate the amount appropriated for the several funds.

**Sec. 51. Unobligated balances.** The unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1963, June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965, in the several appropriations and accounts for each of the state *departments or divisions for which an appropriation is made herein* out of the general revenue fund, are hereby cancelled into said general revenue fund as of June 30, 1963, June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965, and the unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1963, June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965, appropriated out of any other funds, shall be cancelled into the fund from which they are appropriated as of June 30, 1963, June 30, 1964, and June 30, 1965. The provisions of this section shall not apply where otherwise indicated in this act or to aid, contributions, or reimbursements, received from the federal government by the state; and all such federal aid, contributions, or reimbursements are hereby reappropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriations herein provided.

**Sec. 52. Income placed in general revenue fund.** Except as herein otherwise provided, and except as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.78, all income, including fees or receipts of any nature whatsoever, except all federal aid, contributions, or reimbursements received for any account of any division or de-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

partment for which an appropriation is made in this act, shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund.

**Sec. 53. State inheritance tax, share of county.** The state auditor and state treasurer are hereby authorized to set aside in a separate account the amount due the several counties as their share of the state inheritance tax under the provisions of General Laws 1911, Chapter 209, Section 21-D, and acts amendatory thereof, and to pay to the county treasurer of the several counties such amounts at the end of each fiscal year.

**Sec. 54. Misappropriation of funds.** It shall be illegal for any state officer or head of any state department or any employee thereof to use moneys appropriated by this act, or fees collected, for any other purpose than the purpose for which such moneys have been appropriated and any such act by any such person shall be cause for immediate removal from the office or position he holds with the government of the state. Provided, however, that funds may be transferred to the credit of the state employees retirement fund and used for the purposes thereof, as provided by law.

**Sec. 55. [15.056] Publicity representatives.** No state department, bureau or division, whether the same operates on funds appropriated or receipts or fees of any nature whatsoever, except the highway department, the department of business development, the game and fish division, and the division of employment security shall use any of such funds for the payment of the salary or expenses of a publicity representative. The head of any such department, bureau or division shall be personally liable for funds used contrary to this provision. This act shall not be construed, however, as preventing any such department, bureau or division from sending out any bulletins or other publicity required by any state law or necessary for the satisfactory conduct of the business for which such department, bureau or division was created.

**Sec. 56. Motor vehicles.** Notwithstanding any provision in this act to the contrary, the appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1963, which are to be expended for motor vehicles may be encumbered for such purposes prior to such date so that the motor vehicles may be delivered to the state by such date. Motor vehicles of the game warden service shall have printed thereon the markings required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 168.012, for tax exempt vehicles.

**Sec. 57. Legislative advisory committee.** (a) For the purpose of supplying deficiencies in the general revenue fund, the treasurer may temporarily advance money to that fund from other public funds, not exceeding in the aggregate \$26,000,000 in any

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

year; provided that no fund shall be so impaired thereby that all proper demands thereon cannot be met. The power hereby conferred upon the treasurer is in addition to any other similar authority conferred by law.

(b) Whenever it becomes necessary in order to meet the current demands upon the general revenue fund for the payment of warrants issued or to be issued against said fund pursuant to appropriations, and it appears that the deficiencies in such fund cannot be temporarily supplied under (a) hereof, the governor, after securing the recommendation of the legislative advisory committee, which shall be advisory only, or if there be no such committee, the governor, the state auditor, and the state treasurer, as a special committee, at any time prior to June 30, 1965, may authorize the issuance and sale of certificates of indebtedness of the state, pursuant to and in accordance with Article IX, Section 6, of the Constitution, in anticipation of the collection of taxes levied for the general revenue fund, and any other revenues appropriated to that fund for expenditure during the biennium beginning July 1, 1963, in such amount as may be necessary to pay such warrants. The certificates shall be executed by the state auditor and attested by the state treasurer under their official seals, and shall be numbered serially and shall be of such denomination and shall bear such dates of issue and maturity and such rates of interest as the auditor shall determine, provided that no such certificates shall mature later than June 30, 1965, and provided further, that the aggregate amount of such certificates at any time outstanding, plus the aggregate amount of advances made under (a) and not previously repaid, shall not exceed \$26,000,000 and shall not exceed the limitation stated in the Constitution, Article IX, Section 6, Subdivision 3. The failure or refusal of the advisory committee, if there be one, to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. If moneys on hand in the general revenue fund are not sufficient to pay any such certificate at maturity, with interest thereon, the same may be refunded by the issuance of any certificates maturing not later than December 1, 1966. If moneys on hand in said fund are not sufficient to pay all certificates of indebtedness issued thereon and outstanding on December 1, 1965, the state auditor shall levy a tax for the payment of all such certificates and interest thereon, in accordance with the Constitution, Article IX, Section 6, Subdivision 3. Certificates issued and sold pursuant to this act shall be retired out of the receipts of the general revenue fund appropriated to the payment of warrants which are issued against said fund but are taken up with the proceeds of such certificates. The sum of \$130,000 or so much thereof as may be necessary is hereby appropriated from the general revenue fund

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

and made available for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1964, to pay the interest upon such certificates.

(c) The state board of investment, or its successor in authority, is hereby authorized to purchase the certificates of indebtedness herein authorized for any fund which it is authorized to invest, provided, it shall not purchase any such certificates bearing interest at a rate of less than one and one-half percent per annum.

Sec. 58. **Transfer of funds, state auditor.** The state auditor is hereby authorized and directed to transfer to the general revenue fund in the state treasury, all moneys credited to any fund established in connection with the payment of certificates of indebtedness when the purposes for which the act authorizing such certificates have been accomplished.

Subdivision 1. There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the following sums to reimburse the general revenue fund for amounts transferred out of the general contingent fund for the following purposes, for the following years:

- a. From the income tax school fund for the department of education, vocational training of disabled persons for the year ended June 30, 1962 .....\$15,000.00
- b. From the income tax school fund for the department of education supplies and expense for the year ended June 30, 1962 ..... 1,215.32
- c. From the income tax school fund for the department of education salaries for the year ending June 30, 1963 ..... 15,000.00
- d. From the income tax school fund for the department of education supplies and expense for the year ending June 30, 1963 ..... 3,775.00

There is hereby transferred from the general revenue fund the sum of \$1,216 to reverse an erroneous transfer effected by Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 88, Section 57, Subdivision 1c, the sum to be transferred to the game and fish fund.

Subd. 2. There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the sum of \$612,698.38 to reimburse the general revenue fund for the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes and the cost of bond premiums during the 1961-63 biennium, from the highway user tax distribution fund.

There is hereby transferred from the general revenue fund the

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

sum of \$3,378.67 to correct an overestimate in the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes during the 1959-61 biennium, the sum to be transferred to the highway user tax distribution fund. The provisions of subdivision 2 shall take effect upon passage of this act.

There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the sum of \$33,900.53 to reimburse the general revenue fund for functions performed by the office of the state treasurer in mailing gas tax refunds during the 1961-63 biennium, from the highway user tax distribution fund.

There is hereby transferred from the general revenue fund the sum of \$1,729.14 to correct an overestimate in the cost of mailing gas tax refunds during the 1959-61 biennium, the sum to be transferred to the highway user tax distribution fund.

Subd. 3. There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the following sums to reimburse the general revenue fund for occupancy charges in the centennial building which have not been paid for the following departments for the following years:

- a. From the income tax school fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1960 . . \$ 9,496.47
- b. From the income tax school fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1961 . . 26,672.91
- c. From the income tax school fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1962 . . 2,779.94
- d. From the income tax school fund for the department of taxation for the year ending June 30, 1963 . . 4,752.88
- e. From the highway users tax distribution fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1960 . . . . . 485.68
- f. From the highway users tax distribution fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1961 . . . . . 1,524.86
- g. From the highway users tax distribution fund for the department of taxation for the year ended June 30, 1962 . . . . . 981.20
- h. From the highway users tax distribution fund for the department of taxation for the year ending June 30, 1963 . . . . . 1,109.27

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

i.	From the income tax school fund for the department of education for the year ended June 30, 1960 .	5,282.07
j.	From the income tax school fund for the department of education for the year ended June 30, 1961 .	12,611.30
k.	From the income tax school fund for the department of education for the year ended June 30, 1962 .	14,628.52
l.	From the income tax school fund for the department of education for the year ending June 30, 1963 .	9,559.46
m.	From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1960 . .	3,767.29
n.	From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1961 . .	9,288.86
o.	From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1962 . .	5,520.18
p.	From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ending June 30, 1963 . .	6,356.90
q.	<i>From the Dingell-Johnson revolving fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1960 . . . . .</i>	1,043.46
r.	<i>From the Dingell-Johnson revolving fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1961 . . . . .</i>	2,384.83
s.	<i>From the Dingell-Johnson revolving fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1962 . . . . .</i>	1,344.00
Subd. 4. There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the following sums to reimburse the general revenue fund for public examiner audit costs pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.20, Subdivision 9, which sums have not been paid:		
a.	From income tax school fund for the department of taxation audit for the fiscal years 1957-60 . . . . .	\$ 4,826.59
b.	From income tax school fund for the Minnesota braille and sight saving school audit for the fiscal years 1960-62 . . . . .	796.55
c.	From income tax school fund for the Minnesota home school for girls audit for the fiscal years 1960-61 . . . . .	851.82

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- d. From income tax school fund for the school for the deaf audit for the fiscal years 1960-62 ..... 811.27
- e. From the state airports account for the department of taxation audit of airflight property tax for the fiscal years 1957-60 ..... 171.17

Subd. 5. At least once each year on or after July 1, and at such other times as he may deem appropriate, the commissioner of administration, beginning July 1, 1963, in addition to making the determinations required of him by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.20, may determine the costs of providing, during the preceding fiscal year or part thereof, any or all utility services, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.03, Subdivision 3, to the various departments and agencies of the state whose activities are financed wholly or partly with dedicated funds and for which departments and agencies utility services were paid from general revenue fund appropriations made to the department of administration. As used in the foregoing, dedicated funds shall include, but not be limited to, annual appropriations made by the legislature, open, standing, continuing, and revolving appropriations, so-called dedicated receipt accounts, and federal funds. When the commissioner of administration has determined the amount of the cost of such utility services for each department and agency of the state he shall certify the amount so determined to the state auditor. The several amounts so certified by the commissioner of administration are hereby appropriated from the applicable dedicated funds to the general revenue fund in the state treasury as a reimbursement of moneys expended from the general revenue fund by the department of administration for utility services attributable to such dedicated funds. Upon the receipt of the certification of the commissioner of administration, the state auditor shall transfer from the applicable dedicated funds to the general revenue fund in the state treasury the amount certified by the commissioner of administration, and the state auditor is authorized and directed to make the appropriate entries in the records of the respective funds. The commissioner of administration shall transmit a duplicate original of the certification to the state treasurer who is authorized and directed to make the appropriate entries in his records.

The commissioner of administration may, in like manner, determine the costs of providing any or all such utility services to users, other than departments and agencies of the state, which are quartered in the capitol group of buildings and for which such utility services were paid from general revenue fund appropriations made to the department of administration. When the commissioner of administration has made such determination he shall bill such users for the

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



costs attributable to each and the users shall pay the commissioner of administration for the amount so billed. Such amounts when received by the commissioner of administration shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund.

Subd. 6. All unexpended and unencumbered moneys in or which may hereafter accrue to the commissioner of banks liquidation revolving fund in the state treasury are hereby transferred to the general revenue fund in the state treasury.

**Sec. 59. Pay of state officers and employees.** Notwithstanding any provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 43, to the contrary, moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law for salaries shall be expended only in conformity with the provisions of this section.

(a) An economic salary adjustment in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 43.122, and 43.123, shall be paid for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1963; but no additional economic salary adjustment shall be computed, even if due, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1964.

(b) Salary increases authorized by the proposed civil service pay plan on file in the office of the commissioner of administration to be made effective on July 1, 1963, may be paid provided, however, that in computing the salary increases, if any, authorized by the pay plan, the economic salary adjustment authorized in clause (a) shall be considered as a part of the pay increases of the pay plan, and not in addition thereto.

(c) Merit increases and longevity increases shall not be granted during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1963. Merit increases and longevity increases may be granted as provided by law during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1964, to the extent that appropriations are available therefor. Merit increases granted pursuant to this section shall be on the basis of established standards.

(d) The provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 43.12, Subdivision 2, Clause (6) are applicable to the foregoing and to the provisions of any other appropriation act enacted during the 1963 legislative session from which salaries are paid.

**Sec. 60. Salary allotment limitations.** Departments or agencies that are subject to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.16, and that operate in whole or in part with standing appropriations shall be subject to the provisions of this section. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1964, the commissioner of administration shall limit the annual and quarterly budget allotments for salaries as follows:

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

(a) In departments or agencies having from 51 to 100 employees and in the state colleges, 99 percent of the total moneys required for the payment of salaries, merit increases, longevity increases, and retirement contributions shall be allotted.

(b) In departments or agencies having 101 or more employees, 98 percent of the total moneys required for the payment of salaries, merit increases, longevity increases, and retirement contributions shall be allotted.

Sec. 61. **Annual leave allowances.** None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law shall be expended in paying state officers or employees in the unclassified service for unused portions of annual leave allowances provided for by Minnesota Statutes, Section 351.12, for any greater period of time than is permitted state officers or employees in the classified service.

Sec. 62. **Approved complements.** Whenever an appropriation to any state department or agency for salaries discloses an approved complement, that department or agency, except for seasonal and part time employees, is limited in the employment of the number of persons indicated by such approved complement. The employment of seasonal and part time employees shall be in addition to the approved complement but subject to the approval of the commissioner of administration who shall determine the need therefor.

Additional employees over the number of the approved complement may be employed on the basis of public necessity or emergency with the written approval of the governor, but the governor shall not approve such additional personnel until he has consulted with the legislative advisory committee created by Laws 1943, Chapter 594, and such committee has made its recommendation upon the matter. Such recommendation shall be advisory only. Failure or refusal of the committee to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. The provisions hereof shall extend to any other agency to which the present authority of the legislative advisory committee may be transferred, but shall be deemed to be repealed in case such authority shall be abolished.

Sec. 63. **Limitations on appropriations.** All the foregoing appropriations herein contained are to be expended subject to the provisions of Laws 1939, Chapter 431. No appropriation shall become available for expenditure until such estimates as required by Section 16, Article II, of such act shall have been approved by the commissioner of administration. No obligation involving expenditure of money shall be entered into unless there is a balance in the appropriation available not otherwise encumbered to pay obligations previously incurred.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Sec. 64. **Furniture purchased from state reformatory.** Provided, insofar as is practicable, all furniture to be purchased by state departments from moneys made available in this act, shall be procured from the state reformatory for men, notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary.

Sec. 65. [16.811] **Publications by department of administration.** Notwithstanding the provisions of Laws 1963, Chapter 100, or any other law relating to the subject matter of this section; the department of administration may continue to publish reports, documents, and related materials of the same nature described in its catalogs of Minnesota state publications.

Sec. 66. **Refunds.** None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be expended in making any refund where the amount thereof is \$1.00 or less except where the amount, received by the state, giving rise to the refund is \$1.00 or less. Such refunds may be made in conformity with requirements made therefor by the commissioner of administration. Such requirements shall be in lieu of the conditions prescribed by Minnesota Statutes, Section 6.136, Subdivision 1.

Sec. 67. Subdivision 1. The annual salaries of the public officials and employees named in this section, payable from appropriations made from this act or any other appropriation law for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1963, and thereafter, shall be as prescribed in this section.

Subd. 2. **Constitutional officers.**

Governor .....	\$22,500
Secretary of State .....	16,500
State Auditor .....	16,500
State Treasurer .....	16,500
Attorney General .....	18,000

Subd. 3. **Other elected officers.**

Railroad and Warehouse Commissioner .....	13,000
---	--------

Subd. 4. **Assistants to constitutional officers.**

Governor's Private Secretary .....	11,500
Assistant Secretary of State .....	9,500
Deputy State Auditor .....	11,000
Deputy State Treasurer .....	10,000

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

Subd. 5. **Attorney General staff.**

Deputy Attorney General .....	13,500
Solicitor General .....	12,500
Assistant Attorney General, fixed by the Attorney General depending upon experience .....	7,000 to 13,000

A deputy attorney general assigned to the department of highways shall be paid from the trunk highway fund.

Subd. 6. **Major department heads.**

Commissioner of Administration .....	17,500
Commissioner of Agriculture .....	14,500
Commissioner of Highways .....	17,500
Secretary and Executive Officer, Department of Health .....	16,000
Commissioner of Taxation .....	17,500
Commissioner of Public Welfare .....	17,500
Commissioner of Employment Security .....	14,500
Commissioner of Education .....	17,500
Commissioner of Conservation .....	14,500
Commissioner of Corrections .....	17,500
Director, State Civil Service .....	15,000

Subd. 7. **Deputies of major departments.**

Deputy Commissioner of Agriculture .....	11,500
Deputy Commissioner of Conservation .....	12,000
Deputy Commissioner of Corrections (2) .....	12,500

Subd. 8. **Other department, division and agency heads and their assistants.**

Labor Conciliator .....	11,500
Commissioner of Aeronautics .....	12,000
Commissioner of Banks .....	12,500
Director of Forestry .....	11,500

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Director of Game and Fish .....	11,500
Director of Lands and Minerals .....	11,500
Commissioner of Insurance .....	12,500
Liquor Control Commissioner .....	11,500
<i>Secretary and Executive Officer, Livestock Sanitary Board</i> .....	11,500
Public Examiner .....	13,000
State Law Librarian .....	10,000
Commissioner of Securities .....	12,500
Commissioner of Business Development .....	12,500
Director of Waters .....	11,000
Superintendent, Bureau of Criminal Apprehension	11,000
Industrial Commissioner (3) .....	10,500
Commissioner of Veterans Affairs .....	10,000
State Director of Civil Defense .....	10,000
Director of Parks .....	11,500
Commissioner of Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation .....	10,500
Commandant, Minnesota Soldiers Home .....	9,500
Secretary, Compensation Insurance Board .....	8,500
State Surveyor General of Logs and Lumber ....	8,000
Adjutant General, the pay and allowances prescribed by the Armed Forces of the United States for similar rank and grade	
Executive Director, State Commission Against Discrimination .....	10,500
<b>Subd. 9. Heads of institutions.</b>	
Superintendent, State Reformatory for Men .....	13,000
Warden, Minnesota State Prison .....	13,000
Superintendent, State Training School for Boys ..	12,000
Superintendent, Owatonna State School .....	11,000

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

Superintendent, Braille and Sight Saving School . .	11,000
Superintendent, School for the Deaf . . . . .	11,000
Superintendent, Gillette State Hospital . . . . .	11,000
Superintendent, State Reformatory for Women . .	10,500
Superintendent, Minnesota Home School for Girls	11,000
Superintendent, Anoka State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Brainerd State School and Hospital	16,000
Superintendent, Cambridge State School and Hos- pital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Faribault State School and Hos- pital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Fergus Falls State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Hastings State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Moose Lake State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Rochester State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, St. Peter State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Ah-Gwah-Ching Nursing Home . .	15,500
Superintendent, Willmar State Hospital . . . . .	16,000
Superintendent, Glen Lake State Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home . . . . .	15,500

The appointing authority shall fix the foregoing salaries enumerated in this subdivision in an amount not exceeding the salaries listed.

Subd. 10. In compiling the next edition of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall insert the names of the positions and the salaries prescribed in subdivisions 2 to 9 of this section in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 350.021, 350.031, 350.041, 350.051, 350.061, 350.071, 350.081, and 350.082, in lieu of the positions and salaries listed therein. He shall strike from such sections of Minnesota Statutes any of the positions or salaries listed therein which do not appear in said subdivisions 2 to 9. He shall also strike from Minnesota Statutes, Section 350.082, any of the text material therein contained which is not set forth in subdivision 9.

Approved May 25, 1963.

---

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**